

## Series 4000: District Employment

### 4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities

#### 4101 Non-Discrimination

##### A. Equal Employment Opportunity

The District is committed to equal employment opportunity and compliance with federal, state, and local laws that prohibit workplace Unlawful Discrimination, including unlawful harassment and Retaliation, based on any protected class or activity. This Policy applies to all aspects of employment, including recruiting, advertising, hiring, training, job placement, evaluation, classification, promotion, transfer, work assignment, compensation, benefits, discipline, demotion, termination, reduction in force, recall, and any other term or condition of employment.

This Policy prohibits discrimination against employees or applicants for employment based on the following protected classes: race, color, national origin, ethnicity, religion, sex (including pregnancy or related conditions, gender identity, or sexual orientation), height, weight, marital status, age, disability, genetic information, veteran status, military service, or any other legally protected class. This Policy also prohibits Retaliation based on a protected activity.

The District prohibits unlawful employment discrimination as required by applicable civil rights statutes, including:

- Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits discrimination based on race, color, religion, or national origin;
- Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex (including gender identity, and sexual orientation), or national origin;
- Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, which prohibits discrimination based on sex;
- Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (ADEA), which prohibits discrimination based on age as to persons who are at least 40 years old;
- Equal Pay Act of 1963, which prohibits sex discrimination in payment of wages for persons performing substantially equal work in the same establishment;
- Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), which prohibits discrimination based on disability;
- Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), which prohibits discrimination against qualified persons with disabilities in

Deleted: (including gender identity and sexual orientation)

employment, public service, public accommodations, and telecommunications;

- Pregnancy Discrimination Act of 1978, which prohibits discrimination based on pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions;
- Pregnant Workers Fairness Act (PWFA), which requires covered employers to provide reasonable accommodations to a worker's known limitations related to pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions, unless the accommodation will cause an undue hardship.
- Genetic Information Non-Discrimination Act of 2008 (GINA), which prohibits discrimination based on genetic information as to health insurance and employment;
- Michigan Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act of 1976 (ELCRA), which prohibits discrimination based on race, color, national origin, age, sex, pregnancy, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, religion, height, weight, or marital status;
- Michigan Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act of 1976 (MPDCRA), which prohibits discrimination against qualified persons based on disability that is unrelated to that person's ability to perform the duties of a particular position or genetic information; and
- Michigan Equal Pay Act, which prohibits discriminatory wage practices based on sex.

The District also complies with and prohibits employment action that violates the following statutes:

- Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA), which requires covered employers to provide up to 12 work weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave to eligible employees for certain family, military, and medical reasons, and up to 26 work weeks to care for a covered service member with a serious injury or illness;
- Michigan Paid Medical Leave Act of 2018 (PMLA), which provides eligible employees paid medical leave for certain reasons;
- Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA), which provides job protection and reemployment rights to individuals who voluntarily or

involuntarily leave employment to undertake military service, including military reservists and National Guard members called to duty;

- Public Employment Relations Act of 1947 (PERA), which prohibits a public employer from discriminating against an employee based on membership or non-membership in a labor organization;
- Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (FLSA), which establishes minimum wage, overtime pay, record keeping, and youth employment standards affecting employees; and
- Michigan Whistleblower Protection Act of 1980, which protects employees who report a violation or suspected violation of state, local, or federal law and employees who participate in hearings, investigations, or court actions.

#### B. Reporting Requirements

Any employee who believes they have been subjected to behavior that violates this Policy is encouraged to file a complaint promptly with a supervisor. A complaint implicating an individual's civil rights will be investigated pursuant to the procedures outlined in Policy 4104 and 3115-3115H. A complaint alleging Title IX sexual harassment will be investigated pursuant to the procedures outlined in Policy 3118.

Employees with questions about compliance with this Policy and applicable laws should contact the Superintendent or the Employment Compliance Officer(s) identified in Policy 3115B.

Board members, administrators, and supervisors must promptly report incidents of Unlawful Discrimination and Retaliation that he/she observes or about which he/she receives information.

Board members, administrators, or supervisors who receive a complaint alleging a violation of this Policy must promptly report the complaint, in writing, to the Employment Compliance Officer(s) identified in Policy 3115B.

A failure to comply with reporting requirements may result in discipline, including discharge.

#### C. Employment Discrimination Compliance Training

The District will train administrators, supervisors, and the Employment Compliance Officer(s) on how to address and investigate discrimination and retaliation complaints.

The District may also provide discrimination and retaliation training to Board members and employees.

Training may be provided by an outside entity or person approved by the District.

Legal authority: 20 USC 1681 et seq.; 29 USC 206 et seq., 701 et seq., 2601 et seq.; 38 USC 4301 et seq.; 42 USC 2000d et seq., 2000e et seq., 2000ff et seq., 12101 et seq.; H.R. 2617-1626, 117th Cong. § 103(1) (signed into law December 29, 2022); MCL 37.1101 et seq., 37.2101 et seq.; MCL 423.201 et seq.; MCL 750.556; 34 CFR 106.1 et seq.

Date adopted: July 1, 2024

Date revised: February 24, 2025

## **Series 4000: District Employment**

### **4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities**

#### **4105A Pregnancy Workplace Accommodations for Employees and Applicants**

The District complies with state and federal law prohibiting pregnancy discrimination. The District will provide reasonable accommodations to known limitations related to pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions of a qualified employee absent an undue hardship. The District treats pregnancy or related conditions as any other temporary medical condition for all job-related purposes. For purposes of this policy, the term “employee” includes an applicant for employment where relevant.

For an employee who requires a reasonable accommodation due to a known limitation related to pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions, the employee or the employee’s representative must make a proper District official (as identified in Pregnant Workers Fairness Act (“PWFA”) regulations) aware of the limitation.

Upon receipt of an accommodation request, the District will begin the interactive process with the employee to consider whether the employee is qualified under the PWFA and, if so, reasonable accommodation options consistent with the PWFA that do not cause undue hardship using the interactive process form.

Determining whether an employee is qualified may be a two-step inquiry. First, the District will determine whether the employee can perform the essential job functions of the employee’s position with or without a reasonable accommodation. If so, the employee is qualified. If not, then the District will consider the employee to be qualified if: (1) any inability to perform an essential job function(s) is for a temporary period, (2) the essential function(s) could be performed in the near future, and (3) the inability to perform the essential function(s) can be reasonably accommodated without an undue hardship.

Reasonable accommodation requests will not be granted if they cause an undue hardship, as defined by law. The District may require medical documentation supporting the requested accommodation where allowed by law because the information is necessary for assessing the accommodation request. Medical information will be kept confidential.

After considering any relevant medical information, essential job functions, and the employee’s requested accommodations, the District will, as appropriate, implement reasonable accommodations for a qualified employee that do not cause an undue hardship. The District is not obligated to adopt the employee’s specific accommodation request. The District may engage or re-engage in the interactive process, as necessary.

A reasonable accommodation may include a voluntary leave of absence. If an employee has insufficient leave or insufficient accrued employment time to qualify for leave, or if the District does not maintain a leave policy applicable to the employee, the District will treat any pregnancy or related conditions as a justification for a voluntary leave of absence without pay for a reasonable period of time, at the conclusion of which the

employee will be reinstated to the status held when the leave began or to a comparable position without decrease in rate of compensation or loss of promotional opportunities, or any other right or privilege of employment.

An employee who believes they have been discriminated against under this Policy must promptly file a complaint using the Employment Complaint Procedure in Policy 4104. ~~For additional information about preventing and addressing pregnancy discrimination, see Policy 3445G.~~

Legal authority: 42 USC 2000gg et seq.; 29 CFR 1636.1 et seq.; 34 CFR 106.57

Date adopted: February 24, 2025

Date revised:

## Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters

### 5100 Student Rights

#### 5102 Lockers

Lockers are District property and may be made available for student use. Lockers are assigned to students on a temporary basis, and District administration may revoke a student's locker assignment at any time. The District retains ownership of lockers notwithstanding student use.

Students have no expectation of privacy in their lockers. The building principal or designee may inspect lockers without any particularized suspicion or reasonable cause and without advance notice. Upon the building principal or designee's request, law enforcement may help search lockers.

During a locker search, student privacy rights will be respected for any items that are not illegal or against Board Policy.

The Board directs the Superintendent to include this Policy in the student code of conduct and to distribute it to parents/guardians.

Legal authority: MCL 380.1306

Date adopted: July 1, 2024

Date revised:

Deleted: request of the

Deleted:

Deleted: assist with searching



**Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters**

**5200 Student Conduct and Discipline**

**5213 Personal Protection Orders Against Students**

If a student obtains a personal protection order against another student in the same building, either student's parent/guardian should notify the building principal and provide a copy of the order. The building principal or designee may work with the families to change class schedules, lockers, lunch assignments, or bus assignments of either student. While the District will seek to work collaboratively with both families, the District will not enforce a personal protection order to which the District is not a party.

The existence of a personal protection order does not diminish a student's rights under state or federal law.

Deleted: the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.

The existence of a personal protection order alone is not a sufficient basis to exclude a student from school. The District reserves the right, consistent with Policy 5411, to determine the educational placement of a student who is the subject of a personal protection order.

Date adopted: July 1, 2024

Date revised:



Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters

5400 Curriculum, Instruction, and Parent/Guardian Involvement

5405 Title I Parent and Family Engagement Policy

~~An Engagement Policy will be jointly developed and distributed to Parents and family members of participating students and the local community in an understandable format, and to the extent practicable, in a language the Parents can understand. An annual evaluation of the Engagement Policy's content and effectiveness will be used to design evidence based strategies for more effective parental involvement, to revise the Engagement Policy, and to remove barriers to participation. The Engagement Policy will be reviewed annually at a meeting where concerned parties can discuss possible changes to the Engagement Policy.~~

~~A component of the Engagement Policy will be a School-Parent Compact jointly developed by the District and Parents that outlines how the Title I school, Parents, and students will share the responsibility for improved student academic achievement and the means by which the school and Parents will build and develop a partnership to help students achieve state education standards.~~

The District recognizes the unique needs of students who are being served in its Title I program, and the importance of parent and family engagement in the Title I program. Parent and family engagement in the Title I Program must include, but is not limited to:

- A. an annual meeting to which all parents of participating students will be invited to inform parents of their school's participation under this part, to explain the requirements of this part, and to explain the parents' right to be involved. Invitations may take the form of notes sent with students or announcements in the school newsletter. Additional meetings may be scheduled based on need and interest;
- B. an explanation of the details for student and parent participation, including but not limited to: curriculum objectives, the forms of academic assessment used to measure student progress and achievement of the state academic standards, type and extent of participation, parental input in educational decisions, coordination and integration with other federal, state, and District programs, and evaluations of progress;
- C. opportunities to participate in parent involvement activities, such as training parents to work with their students to improve achievement. A goal of parent activities is to provide parents with opportunities to participate in education-related decisions for their students, as appropriate;
- D. to the extent practicable, opportunities for involvement in the Title I Program for parents of limited English proficiency, parents with disabilities, parents with limited literacy, parents who are economically disadvantaged, parents of a minority background, or parents of migratory children. Communication to parents about student progress and other Title I matters will be provided in a language the parent

Formatted: Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between: (No border)

Deleted: The District will jointly develop with parents/guardians a School-Parent-Student Compact that outlines how the Title I school, parents, and students will share the responsibility for improved student academic achievement and the means by which the school and parents will build and develop a partnership to help students achieve state education standards.

Deleted: §

Deleted: The Engagement Policy will be jointly developed and distributed to parents and family members of participating students and the local community in an understandable format and, to the extent practicable, in a language the parents can understand. An annual evaluation of the Engagement Policy's content and effectiveness will be used to design evidence-based strategies for more effective parental involvement, to revise the Parent and Family Engagement Policy, and to remove barriers to participation. The Engagement Policy will be reviewed annually at a meeting where concerned parties can discuss possible changes to the Engagement Policy.

Formatted: Font: Font color: Text 1

can understand, to the extent practicable. Responses to parent concerns will be provided in a timely manner;

- E. opportunities for parent-teacher conferences, in addition to those regularly scheduled by the District, if requested by the parents or as deemed necessary by District staff;
- F. coordination and integration of parental involvement programs and activities with other community programs. These may include cooperation with other community programs such as Head Start, preschools, and other community services; and
- G. educating teachers, specialized instructional support personnel, principals, and other school leaders, with the assistance of parents in the value and utility of parental contributions, how to reach out to, communicate with and work with, parents as equal partners.

Legal Authority: 20 USC 6318

Date adopted: July 1, 2024

Date revised:

## **Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters**

### **5400 Curriculum, Instruction, and Parent/Guardian Involvement**

#### **5421 *Work-Based Learning Experience***

The District permits students to participate in approved work-based learning (WBL) experiences. All WBL experiences must comply with applicable law, regulations, and guidance, particularly those applicable to the employment of minors, workplace safety, workers' compensation, nondiscrimination, and unlawful harassment.

A WBL experience will be coordinated by the District through a training agreement with an employer. The employer must provide a training plan, acceptable to the District, which explains how the WBL experience relates to the student's educational objectives. The WBL experience must be supervised by the employer and monitored by a certified teacher employed by the District or an individual working under a valid substitute permit, authorization, or approval issued by MDE. The training agreement and training plan must comply with MDE guidance and be in effect by the applicable pupil count day. A copy of the training agreement and training plan will be kept on file at the District and with the employer.

A WBL experience may be paid or unpaid.

The Superintendent will designate a WBL Coordinator who will determine whether a proposed WBL experience complies with applicable state and federal laws, regulations, and guidance and is consistent with the student's educational objectives.

If the WBL Coordinator denies a student's request for a WBL experience, the student may appeal the decision to the Superintendent or designee, whose decision is final.

If the WBL Coordinator determines during the course of the WBL experience that the experience or worksite no longer complies with the approved training plan, District Policy, or state or federal laws, regulations, or guidance, the WBL Coordinator will, in consultation with the Superintendent or designee, determine whether the WBL experience should continue.

Credit for a WBL experience will be consistent with Policy 5409 and the applicable student handbook.

Legal authority: Work-Based Learning Manual, Michigan Department of Education

Date adopted: July 1, 2024

Date revised:

**Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters**

**5500 School Sponsored and Extracurricular Activities**

**5502 Student Government**

The purpose of student government is to provide students with leadership opportunities and experience in the representative democratic process.

Students shall elect officers and representatives, conduct meetings, and engage in approved activities and functions designed to be beneficial to the student body.

Deleted: may organize a student government,

A student government organization must be supervised by a staff member. A student government organization's charter, constitution, or bylaws will be subject to review and approval by the Superintendent or designee.

Date adopted: July 1, 2024

Date revised:

## **Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters**

### **5700 Student Health and Safety**

#### **5707 School Wellness Policy**

The District is committed to providing a school environment that enhances opportunities for learning and lifelong wellness.

##### **A. Nutrition Promotion and Education Goals**

All students will receive nutrition education annually that is aligned with the Michigan Health Education Grade Level Content Expectations and the Michigan Merit Curriculum Guidelines for Health Education. Teaching healthy eating behaviors will be part of the curriculum.

The District promotes healthy food and beverage choices for students. The District will implement evidence-based healthy food promotion techniques through:

1. offering school meal programs; and
2. publicizing foods and beverages that meet or exceed the USDA Smart Snacks in School nutrition standards. The District will collaborate with public and private entities to promote student wellness.

The District will make filtered water available to students throughout the school day.

##### **B. Physical Activity Goals**

The District will offer physical education programs that are designed to equip students with the knowledge, skills, and values necessary for lifelong physical activity. Physical education instruction will be aligned with the Michigan Physical Education Grade Level Content Expectations and the Michigan Merit Curriculum Guidelines for Physical Education.

Students will have the opportunity to participate regularly in supervised physical activities, either organized or unstructured, intended to maintain physical fitness and an understanding of the benefits of a physically active and healthy lifestyle.

The District strives to provide physical activity breaks for all students, including recess for elementary students and before and after school activities, and encourages students to use active transport (e.g., walking, biking).

The District encourages parents/guardians to support their students' participation in physical activity, to be physically active role models, and to include physical activities in family events.

##### **C. Goals for Other School-Based Activities Designed to Promote Student Wellness**

The District may partner with community members or groups to implement this Policy. The District will also:

1. participate in state and federal child nutrition programs as appropriate;
  2. allow other health-related entities to use school facilities for activities such as health clinics, screenings, and wellness events consistent with Policy 3304;
  3. use evidence-based strategies to develop, structure, and support student wellness; and
  4. create environments conducive to healthy eating, physical activity, and conveying consistent health messages.
- D. Standards and Nutrition Guidelines for All Foods and Beverages Sold to Students on the School Campus and During the School Day

The District will ensure that students have access to foods and beverages that comply with applicable laws and guidelines including, but not limited to, the USDA Nutrition Standards for School Meals and the USDA Smart Snacks in School nutrition standards.

The District will offer students a variety of age-appropriate, healthy food and beverage selections including fruits, vegetables, and whole grains aimed at meeting the nutrition needs of students within their calorie requirements to promote student health and reduce childhood obesity.

- E. Standards for All Foods and Beverages Provided, But Not Sold, to Students During the School Day

The District may provide a list of healthy food and beverage alternatives to parents/guardians, teachers, and students for classroom parties, rewards and incentives, or classroom snacks. The District discourages the use of unhealthy food and beverages as a reward or incentive for performance or behavior.

- F. Food and Beverage Marketing

Marketing and advertising is allowed on school grounds or at school activities only for foods and beverages that meet or exceed the USDA Smart Snacks in School nutrition standards. Food and beverage fundraising and marketing that occurs at events outside of school hours need not comply with the USDA Smart Snacks in School nutrition standards.

In-school fundraising events must comply with Policy 5501 and MDE's Non-Compliant Food Fundraiser Guidance, which permits 2 fundraisers per week, per school building that do not comply with USDA Smart Snacks in School nutrition standards. In-school fundraising events may last up to 1 day and may not be held in the food service area during meal times.

Equipment that currently displays noncompliant marketing materials (e.g., scoreboard with soft drink logo) need not be immediately removed or replaced. As the District reviews and considers new contracts and as durable equipment, like scoreboards, is replaced or updated, any food or beverages marketed and advertised will meet or exceed the USDA Smart Snacks in School nutrition standards.

#### G. Wellness Committee

The District will form a Wellness Committee to establish goals for, oversee, and periodically review and update school health policies and programs. The Wellness Committee will also oversee this Policy's implementation.

The Wellness Committee will represent all school buildings and include, to the extent possible, parents/guardians, students, food service representatives, physical and health education teachers, school and community health care professionals, and community members. The Board encourages community participation in the Wellness Committee. When possible, membership will also include Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program education coordinators.

#### H. Implementation and Oversight

The Superintendent or designee is responsible for ensuring that each school building complies with this Policy.

The Board will review this Policy at least every 3 years to determine compliance, progress, and the extent to which this Policy compares to model school wellness policies. Parents/guardians, students, school employees, school health professionals, Board members, and community members may provide input to the District during the Wellness Policy review process.

A copy of this Policy will be maintained in the District's administrative offices and posted on the District's website. The Superintendent or designee will maintain all legally required documentation for implementation of this Policy.

The Superintendent or designee will annually provide notice about this Policy and any updates to the community.

#### I. School Meal Program

##### 1. Delinquent Meal Charge Debt and Bad Debt

The District is required to make reasonable efforts to collect unpaid meal charges of current students. The building principal or designee will contact households about unpaid meal charges and may establish payment plans and due dates by telephone, e-mail, or other written or oral communication. If these collection efforts are unsuccessful, the District may pursue any other methods to collect delinquent debt of current students as allowed by law. Collection efforts may continue into a new school year.



Unpaid meal charges of inactive students, such as graduated students and students no longer enrolled at the District, that are not collected by the end of the school year will be classified as bad debt. No later than December 31 of the following school year, non-federal funds will be used to reimburse the school meal program for the amount of bad debt.

## 2. Elimination of "Lunch Shaming"

The District will eliminate any form of "lunch shaming." "Lunch shaming" is the public identification or stigmatization of students who cannot pay for a school meal. In furtherance of this goal, the District prohibits the following:

- a. requiring a student who cannot pay for a school meal or who has unpaid meal charges to wear a wristband or handstamp;
- b. requiring a student to dispose of a meal after it has been served because the student cannot pay for the meal or has unpaid meal charges;
- c. communicating directly with a student about unpaid meal charges
- d. requiring a student to perform chores or other labor to pay a student meal debt; and
- e. discussing a student's unpaid meal charges in the presence of other students.

## 3. Meal Charge Policy

The District's policy on charged meals is: If a student has no funds available to pay for a meal, the student will be provided a meal, and the student's account will be charged.

Students who qualify for free meals will not be denied a reimbursable meal, even if they have accrued a negative balance from other food purchases.

The District will encourage Parents to complete financial eligibility forms as part of the student enrollment process to determine eligibility for free or reduced-price meals.

The Board directs the Superintendent to include this Policy in the student handbook and to distribute it to Parents.

Date adopted: July 1, 2024

Date revised: February 24, 2025

**Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters**

**5800 Miscellaneous**

**5806 Recording of District Meetings**

**A. Audio Recording of Individualized Education Program (IEP) Team and Section 504 Meetings**

Parents/guardians of students with disabilities are permitted to audio record IEP Team and Section 504 meetings if the parent/guardian provides notice to the District before the date of the scheduled meeting.]

Parents/guardians must use their own device for any recording permitted pursuant to this Policy. If a parent/guardian records a meeting pursuant to this Policy, the District may also record the meeting.

**B. Audio Recording of Other Meetings**

Parents/guardians may not record any other meeting without prior written approval of the Superintendent or designee. If a parent/guardian is permitted to audio record a meeting, the parent/guardian must use their own recording device he District may also elect to record the meeting.

**C. Secret Recording of Meetings and Other Activities**

Parents/guardians and students may not use secret means to record any meeting or activity at school. Student use of a device with listen-in or audio surveillance capabilities at school must comply with applicable Board policy.

**D. Video Recording of Meetings**

Video recording of any meeting, including IEP Team and Section 504 meetings, is prohibited. This Policy does not apply to meetings that are open to the public under the Open Meetings Act.

Date adopted: July 1, 2024

Date revised:

Deleted: absent the

Deleted: and

Deleted: T

Deleted: t

Deleted: also